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Receipt Number
5496]

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

Evhibigs A - F

LIQUI-FORCE SERVICES, )
a Cunadian company, and )
- Case: 2:06-cv-14146
LIQUI-FORCE SERVICES USA, INC ) e et Atthur J
a Michigan Corporation ) Referral Judge: Capel, Wallace
Plaintiff } Filed: 09-20-2006 At 03:01 PM
’ CMP LIGUI-FORGE SERVICES, ET AL V.
) MK ENTERPRISES (TAM)
)
LMK ENTERFPRISES )
an lllinois Corporation, ) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
}
Defendant. )

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT AND COMPLAINT

Liqui-Force Services and Liqui-Force Scrvices USA, Tnc., (hereinafler “Liqui-Force™)
hereby states and alleges as follows:

THE PARTIES

L. Plaintiff Liqui-Force Services is a corporation organized under the laws of the
province of Ontario, Canada and has a principle place of business at 2015 Sprinks Drive RR2

Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2E5.

2. Plaintiff Liqui-Force Services USA, Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws
of Michigan and has a principle place of business at 28529 Goddard Road, Ste 106, Romulus,

Michigan 48174.

Vo)
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3. Upon information and believe LMK Enterprises (Hereinalter “LMKY) is a
corporalion incorporated under the laws of the State of [llinois with its principal place of

business at 1779 Chessie Lane, Ouawa, INlinois 61350.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4, This is an action for declaratory relief pursuant to the laws set forth in Title 28 of
the United Stated Code, and particularly, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202. Jurisdiction in this court
is based op 28 U.S.C. §31331 and 1338(a). This Court has personal jurisdiction over LMK in
vicw of its contacts with this forum. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction of the state and

common law claims under 28 U.8.C. § 1367.

5. Defendant LMK has intentionally directed it’s actions to this district by
undertaking the conduct alleged below, and kncw that such actions would cause the brunt of the

injury to be suffered in this district.

6. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.5.C. §§ 1391 and 1400
because acls or omissions giving rise 10 the ¢laim occurred in this distriet, and a substantial part

of property subject of this action is situated in this district.
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CAUSE OF ACTION FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

COUNT I: NON-INFRINGEMENT OF U.S, PATENT 6.039.079

7. Liqui-Force secks a declaratory judgment declaring that United Stated Patent No.:
6.039.079, (hcreinafter the ‘079 patent) entitled “Apparatus and Method for Repairing the
Junction of a Sewer Main Line and Lateral Pipe” was not obtaincd in a manner consistent with
the provisions of Title 35, United States Code and are thus invalid and/or unenforceable. More
specifically, the ‘079 patent is invalid and/or unenforceable for failure 1o comply with one or
more of the conditions for patentability sct forth in 35 U.S.C. §§ 101,102,103 and 112. A copy

of the ‘079 patent is aulached as Exhibit A.

8. Liqui-Force seeks a declaratory judgment declaring that Ligui-Force does mot
currently make, use or sell in the United States or elsewhere any product that infringes, or use of
that infringes the ‘079 patent, and Liqui-Force has not infringed or induced any other to infringe

the ‘079 patent.

9. Any products that Liqui-Force installed that may be covered by the "079 patents
were purchased from LMK. Liqui-Force has never made or used any product that falls within a

valid and enforceable claim of the ‘079 patent that was not directly purchased from LMK,

10. LMK has brought suit against Liqui-Force in United States District Court,
Northern District of Illinois, Eastern division, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

The LMK suit alleges infringement of the ‘079 patent. Thereforc, an actual controversy exits
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between Liqui-Force and LMK. Ligui-Force will file a motjon to dismiss that action because the

Court in Tllinois does not have jurisdiction over Liqui-Force and venue is improper in Hlinois.

COUNT TI: NON-BREACH OF NOVEMBER 27, 1998 AND MARCH 9, 1998

AGREEMENTS BETWEEN LIQUL-FORCE AND LMK

11.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force incorporates by refcrence the allegations of paragraphs 1-6

ahove.

i2.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force Services and Defendant LMK entered into a first agreement
on March 9, 1998, (Attached as exhibit C). Plaintiff Liqui-Foree Services USA., Inc. and LMK
entered into a second agreement on November 27, 1998 (Attached as cxhibit D) (hereinafter “the
agrecments”), Under the agreements Liqui-Force agreed to purchase sewer lining products and

equipment from LMK.

13.  The agrcements include the following definitions:

Licensed Products shall mean devices or equipment coming within one or
more claims of the Patent Rights or utilizing Licensors Proprietary Technology.

Licensed Services shall mean the method coming within one or more
claims of the Patent Rights or utilizing Licensors Proprietary Technology.

Proprictary Technology shall mean confidential information and know-
how disclosed to Licensee by Licensor during the term of this Agrecement and
which is not known to the public, disclosed in an issued patent, or otherwise in the
public domain.
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No Royalties Due
14.  Plaintiff Ligui-Force seeks a declaratory judgment declaring that Ligui-Force

docs not owe LMK any royalties under the agreements.

15.  The agreements includes a clause providing for the payment of a royally of 10%
of the Licensce’s sales proceeds for the Licensed Products and Services provided to customers

with equipment, products or services that were not purchased from Licensor LMK.

16.  Liqui-Force has mever made any devices or products that fall within LMK's
Licensed Products as defined in the agreement. Liqui-Force has always purchased equipment
and the Licensed Products from LMK, Thercfore no royaities as provided by the agreements are

due to LMK.

LMK has No Ownership Interest
17.  Liqui-Force seeks a declaratory judgment declaring that Ligui-Force 15 not

required to convey ownership of U.S. Patents 6,484,757, 6,695,013; and 6,827,526 to LMEK.

18.  Thc agreements include a grant back clause that statcs:

Any inventions for improvements to the Licensed Products and Services,
whether patentable or not, shall be owned by Licensor regardicss of whether or
not developed or invented by Licensor or Licensee or both.
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19.  As reproduced above, the agreements define the Licensed Products as devices or
cquipment coming within onc or more claims of the Patent Rights or utilizing Licensors

Proprietary Technology.

20.  The patents owned by Liqui-Force do not fall within any of the claims of any of

LMK patents and do not use any LMK proprietary technology.

21.  Further, the agreements are subject to rescission for failing to comply with
Michigan Franchise Investment Law as cxplained below in Counts [l and IV. Therefore, Liqui-
Force has no obligation convey the Liqui-Force patents, and/or other intellectual property to

LMK.

No Breach of Territorial Restriction
22.  Liqui-Force sceks a declaratory judgment declaring that no breach of the

agreements occurred by way of work conducted by Liqui-Force outside of the licensed territory.

23.  Liqui-Force and LMK have operated under separate agreements, and under the
authorization of LMK where Liqui-Force made payments in the name of and directly to Mr.
Larry M. Kiest, who is a principle of LMEK, for authorization to perform work using LMK

Licensed Products outside of the Licensed Territory.
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24.  Liqui-Force has not used LMK Licensed Products outside the livensed territory

without authorization from Mr. Larry M. Kiest and/or LMK.

Non-Compete covenant is void and unenforceable
25.  Liqui-Force seeks a declaratory judgment declaring that a non-compete covenant

after termination of the agreements is invalid and/or unenforceable.

26.  The covenant nol to compete after termination of the agreements 1s unenforceable
as it is not necessary to protcct LMK’s business intercsts, is not reasonable in scope and merely

is in place to prevent legitimate competition.

27.  Further, the agreements are void, unenforceable and/or subject to rescission for
failing to comply with Michigan Franchise Investment Law as explained below in Counts 1T and

V.

98, LMK has brought suit against Liqui-Force in United States District Court,
Northern District of Tllinois, Eastern division, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B,
The LMK suit alleges infringement of the ‘079 patent. Therefore, an actual controversy exits
betwcen Liqui-Foree and LMK. Liqui-Force will file a motion to dismiss that action becausc the
Court in [llinois does not have personal jurisdiction over Liqui-Force and venue is improper in

1linois.
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COUNT 1L VIOLATION OF MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

(MCL §§ 445.1501)

(March 9, 1998 Agreement, Exhibit C)

29.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force incorporates by reference the allegations from paragraphs 1-

6 above.

30. On March 9, 1998 defendant IMK and Liqui-Force services cntered into a
franchise agrecment (Exhibit C) as defined by Michigan statute MCI. § 445.1502. Although the
agrecment was presented as a patent license agreement, the terms of the agreement meet the
statutory requirements of a franchise agreement under Michigan Franchise Investment Law MCL
§445.1502. The Michigan statute applies to agreements, regardless of the intent of the parties,
that grant the right to engage in the business of offering, selling or distributing goods or services
under a marketing plan or system prescribed in substantial part by a franchisor, that is
substantially associated with the franchisors trademark, service mark, tradc name, logotype,
advertising or other commercial symbol designating the franchisor or its affiliate, and payment of
afee. These elemenis are present in the March 9, 1998 agreement as described in part below.

A. LMK granted Ligqui-Force the right to offer, sell and distribute LMK sewer lining
products and services.

B. LMK proscribed in substantial part a set of standards for selling and installing
sewer lining products that included standard operating procedures, training for installing LMK’s
sewer lining products, requirements that products be purchased from LMK, along with

limitations on the territory within which Liqui-Foree could sell and install LMK’s products.
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C. LMK required Liqui-Force to mark all Licensed Products and literature with an
appropriate patent notice and was granted the right to use LMK’s trademark “‘Performance
Liner” in conncction with sewer lining installation services.

D. Ligui-Force paid a fee as defined by MCL §445.1503 (1) to LMK for the

franchise.

31, LMK failed to register to scll franchises in the State of Michigan in violation of
MCL §§ 445.1507a. (Letter from Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Unit of the

Department of Michigan Attorney Generals Office, Exhibit E}

12, LMK failed to pay fces requircd under Michigan statute in violation of MCL§#%

445.1540.

33. LMK sold this franchise 1o Liqui-Force without providing a copy of the disclosurc
statement required as specificd by MCL §445.1 508(2) in violation of MCL$§ 445.1508(1). As a
result of the LMK’s failure to provide the required disclosures to Liqui-Force, Iiqui-Force has

suffered damages in amounts specified in paragraph 37 below.

14, The disclosure staternent under MCL§ 445,1508(2) requires notice that certain
unfair provision that are sometimes in a franchise document are void and unenforceable. As
Liqui-Force was not provided the required disclosarcs, Liqui-Force was not informed of thesc

void and unenforceable provisions, The franchise agreement includes a choice of forumn clause
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requiring that litigation be conducted in the statc of Tllinois, This clause is void and

unenforceable under MCL§445.1527(F).

35. LMK made representations in connection with the sale of the franchisc that were
untrue as to the capability of purchased sewer lining products in violation of MCL 445.1505 of
the Michigan Franchise Investment Act causing damage (0 Liqui-Force as described and

specified in paragraph 38 below.

36. LMK made representations to Liqui-Force as to it’s experience in installing sewcr
lining products that were untrue, and/or omitted a malerial fact necessary in order to make the

statements made not misleading in light of the circumstances in violation of MCL § 445.1505.

37. LMK breached cxpressed terms of the Franchise agrecment by terminating the

agreement without providing the required thirty day {30) written notice. (Exhibit F).

38, Liqui-Force suffered damages as a result of product failures directly attributable
to represcntations made by LMK in amount in excess of $1,000,000 U.S. Further, LMK product
failurcs have caused damages in the form of lost revenuc in excess of $5,000,000 U.8. and
caused damage o Liqui-Force’s reputation and ability to secure future work in an amount not yet

determined.
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COUNT 1V: VIOLATION OF MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

(MCL §§ 445.1501)

(Novernber 27, 1998 Agreement, Exhibit D)

39.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force incorporates by reference the allegations from paragraphs 1-

6 above.

40, On November 27, 1998 defendant LMK and Liqui-Force services entered into a
franchisc agreement (Exhibit D) as defined by Michigan statute MCL § 445.1502. Although the
agrcement was presented as a patent license agreement, the terms of (he agreement meet the
statutory requirements of a franchise agreement under Michigan Franchisc nvestment Law MCL
§445.1502. The Michigan statutc applies to this agrecment for the same reasons discussed in
paragraph 30 above with the only difference being that the November 27, 1998 franchise
agreement granted the right to use LMK's trademark “T-Linct” in connection with sewer lining

installation services instead of the “Performance Liner” mark.

41. LMK failed to register to sell franchises in the State of Michigan in violation of

MCL &4 445,1507a. (Exhibit E)

42. LMK failed to pay fees required under Michigan statute in violation of MCL&§

445,1540.

Z11-
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43, LMK sold this franchise to Liqui-Force without providing a copy of the disclosure
statement required as specified by MCL §445.1508(2) in violation of MCLS 445.1508(1). As a
resull of LMK's failure to provide the required disclosures to Liqui-Force, Liqui-Force has

suffered damages in amount described and specified in paragraph 48 below.

44.  As mo disclosure statement as specified by MCL§ 445.1508(2) was provided,
Liqui-Force was not informed of certain provisions as specified under the provisions of MCL §
445.1508 within the franchisc agrecment that arc void and unenforccable under Michigan law
when included in a franchise agreement. The franchise agreement includes a choice of forum
provision requiting that litigation be conducted in the state of Tllinois. This clause is void and

unenforceable under MCL§445.1527(f) in a franchise agreement.

43, LMK made represcntations in connection with the salc of the franchise that were
untrue as to the capability of purchased sewer lining products in violation of MCIL. 445.1505 of

the Michigan Franchisc Investment Act causing damage to Ligui-Force in an amount described

and specified in paragraph 48 below.

46. LMK made representations to Liqui-Force as to it’s expericnce in installing sewer
lining products that were untrue, and/or omitled a material fact necessary in order 1o make the

staternents ade not misleading in Tight of the circumstances in violation of MCL § 445.1505.
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47 LMK breached expressed terms of the Franchise agreement by terminating the

agrecment without providing the required thirty day (30) written notice. (Exhibit F).

48.  Liqui-Force suffered damages as a result of LMK product failures in amount in
cxcess of $1,000.000 U.S. Further, LMK product failures have caused damages in the form of
lost revenue in excess of $5,000,000 U.S. and caused damage to Liqui-Foree’s reputation and

ability to secure future work in an amount not yct determined.

COUNT V: BREACH OF IMPLIED WARRANT OF MERCHANTABILITY

MCL § 440.2314

49.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force incorporates by refercnce the allegations {rom paragraphs 1-

6 above.

50. LMK is a supplier of sewer lining products and equipment.

51.  Liqui-Force purchased equipment and sewer lining products for installation

according to the specifications provided by LMK. LMK made certain representations as 10

product capability and product application for specific sewer lining applications.

52.  Liqui-Force relied on LMK's representations as to product capability and product

application for specific sewer lining applications.

- 13-
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53. LMK’s equipment and sewer lining products did not perform as represented to

Ligui-Force.

54 LMK knew or should have known thal failure of the sewer lining product to

Ligui-Porce would cause damage to Ligui-Force.

55.  Liqui-Force suffered damages as 4 result of reliance on LMK’s products and
representations in an amount in cxcess of $1,000,000 U.S. Further, Liqui-Force has suffercd
additional damages lo it's good will and reputation as a result of reliance on LMK’s
representations that have impacted Liqui-Forces ability to securc future work in an amount in

excess of $5,000,000 1.5,

COUNT VL BREACH OF IMPLIED WARRANTY; FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR

PURPOSE

(MCL § 440.2313)

56.  Plaintiff Liqui-Force incorporates by reference the allegations from paragraphs 1-

6 above.

57. LMK is a supplier of sewer lining products and equipment.

-14 -
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58.  Liqui-Force purchased equipment and sewer lining products for installation
according to the specifications provided by LMK. LMK made certain representations as o

product capability and product application for specific sewer lining applications.
59. LMK knew the specific use and application for the sewer lining products
purchased by Liqui-Force, and Ligui-Force relied on LMK 1o provide the proper sewer lining

product for the specific application.

60. LMK’s equipment and sewer lining products as specified and provided by LMK

were not fit for the intended purpose and did not perform as represented by LMK to Liqui-Force.

61,  Liqui-Force suffered damages as a result of reliance on LMK’s products and

representations in an amount in excess of $1,000,000 U.S. Further, Liqui-Force has suffered
additional damages lo it’s good will and reputation as a vesull of reliance on LMK's

represenlations that have impacted Liqui-Force’s ability to securc future work in an amount not

yet determined but in excess of $5,000,000 U.5.

62.  Damages suffered by Liqui-Force as a result of the unfit sewer lining materials

purchased from LMK were forcseeable by LMK at the time of sale.
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RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, LIQUI-FORCE rcquests the following reliet:

A, Enter a judgment declaring that the ‘079 patent is invalid and unenforceable;

B. Enter a judgment declaring that the ‘079 patent is not infringed by any products
currently or previously made, used or sold by LIQUI-FORCE;

C. Enter a judgment granting rescission of the Franchise agreements between
LIQUI-FORCE and LMK as provided in MCL§445.1531 plus interest including an adjustment
a5 at the time of the injury to LIQUI-FORCE the U.S. dollar was worth much morc relative to
the Canadian dollar and therefore LIQULI-FORCE is also entitled to ap adjustment to compensate
tor this change in cxchange rates;

D. Enter a judgment awarding all damages for violations of the Michigan Franchise
Investment Act to which LIQUI-FORCE is legally entitled, in an amount determined by this
Court, adequate to compeﬁsatc LIQUI-FORCE including interest and adjustments to compensate

for the change in exchange rates between Canadian and U.S. currency at the time of the injury;

E. Enter a judgment that LIQUI-FORCE does not owe royalties of any kind to LMK;

F. Enter a judgment that LMK is not entitled to any right or interest in U.5. Patents
6,484,757, 6,695,013, and 6,827,526,

G. Enter a judgment that the post termination clauscs within the Franchise

agreements are unenforceable;

H. Enter a judgment that LIQUI-FORCE did not breach terms of the agreements by

conducting work outside of the territory under agreement with LMK;

- 16 -
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L Enter a judgment awarding damages caused by LMK’s breach of warranty of
merchantability to which LIQUI-FFORCE is legally entitied, in an amount determined by this
Court adequate to compensate LIQUI-FORCE;

I Enter a judgment awarding damages caused by LMK’s breach of implied
warranty; fimness for particujar purposc to which LIQUI-FORCE is legally entitled, in an amount
determined at trial to compensate LIQUI-FORCE, including interest and adjustment to
compensate for changes in the exchange rate between Canadian and U.S. currency:

K. Enler a judgment awarding costs and attorneys’ fees plus interest and adjustment
to compensate for changes in the exchange rate between Canadian and US currency;

L. Enter a judgment awarding such other and further relict as the Court may deem

just and equitable.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Liqui-Force hercby requests a jury trial of all issues triable to a jury.

CARLSON, GASKEY & OLDS. P.C.
OS2 Ao
By O ) = v

Theodore W. Olds (P42004)
John M. Siragusa (P62573)
400 W. Maple, Suite 350
Birmingham, Michigan 48009
Telephone: (248) 088-8360
Facsimile: (248) 988-83063
jsiragusa@cgolaw.com

Dated: September 20, 2006

-17-
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[57] ATSTRACT

An apparatus aod method for repairing the junciion of a
sewer main live aod a lateral pipe includes a generally
T-shaped flexible translucent wrethane influtable bladder
having a main live portion and a lalersl portion. The lateral
portion is inverted theough the main lire portion and extends
out one end thereof, A liner assembly of resin absorbent
muterial is formed, with a tubular lateral liner comneeted o
a flat sheet main finer, al u central opening in the a1 sheet
liner. Each liner is cosled wilh a polymer coating, for an
airtight scal, and a polymer tape is welded to the polymer
coitling vn e lateral lioer and the junclion of the lateral
liner und Bat sheet, to form aietight seals, Ibe liner assembly
is Lhen installed in the bladder assembly, by threading the
lateral liner iuto the lateral bladder uptil the fat shest
gonlacts the main line bladder, Ihe lateral liner is then
impregnated with uncured resin and the lingr/bladder assem-
bly is installed on launcher The Hal sheet liner is also
nnpregnated with uncured resin, and the launcher is theo
inserted o a sewer main line and aligned with a laleral pipe
ky be repaired. The lateral bladder is inflated to revert the
bladder upwardly inie the lateral pipe forcing the liner
assembly into contact with the lateral pipe, (be main line
sewer pipe, and the junction thereof. Quce the resin is eured,
the bladder assembly and Jauncher are removed from the
sEwer pipe.

13 Claims, 8 Druwing Sheets
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U.S. Patent Mar. 21, 2000 Sheet 1 of 8 6,039,079
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U.S. Patent Mar. 21, 2000 Sheet 3 of 8 6,039,079
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6,039,079

1

APPARATUS AND METHOD FOR
REPAIRING THE JUNCTION OF A SEWER
MAIN LINE AND LATERAL I'IPE

TECHNICAL FIELD

‘I'he present inveniion relates generally to sewst pipe Line
repair, and more particularly to an improved method and
apparatus for installimg a resin impregnated liner at the
juncture of a sewer maie line and lateral pipe, and extending
down the latersl pipe,

BACKGROUND OF TIIE INVENTION

Cine method of repairing damaped sewer pipe is 1o
excavate the area surrounding the sewer pipe and replace the
hroken portion. This is a very expensive and lubor intensive
salution, and is also an inconvenience o residenats living io
the area and utilizing roadways overlying the area.

Ancther salution is to reline the sower pipes on site, Such
methods typically wtilize a resin ccaled liner which is
inserted into the existing sewee pipe line aod fitted against
the inlerior of the sewer pipe. The lingr is held against the
interivr of the pipe while the resin cures to form a2 new pipe
lining within the existing pipe.

Oue example of such a methad is shown in U.S. Pal, No.
4366012, In this patent, a provess wtilizing an elongaled
biadder whbe having an inner tubular liner comprised of felt
is shown, Uncured resin is intreduced inte the Bladder tube
and is used o impregnate the felt inner liner. The Bladder

tube and the tuhulat liner are then fnserted inta the end of the

sewer pipe to be repaired, and moved to the area of the sewer
pipe nceding repair, Upen reaching the area of the sewer
pipe nceding repair, the impregaated folt liner is nverted out
of the bladder lube 5o that it is on the outside surface of the

bladder {ube and is pressed apainst the interior surface of the

sewer pipe. When the resin cures, a new pipe liner is
provided at the area (o be repaired.

In many cases connection of lateral pipes to main sewer
lines [or residential or other cuslomers was frequently
gecomplished by forming a hole in the main ling with a
sledge or the like. The latern] pipe was then simply abutted
against the hole, and then the exesvation back filled to cover
the juncture, Often, this junentre of the lateral with the main
line would Jeuk, and would not provide a tight scaled
conneclion.

With the growing concern regarding the enviroumental
impact of sewage leakage, such junctures are primary ¢an-
corn for repair, and can e repaired simultanecusly with the
lining of the lateral pipe by the method of the present
invention.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

It is theretore a general object of the present invention o

provide an improved method and apparatus [oc repairing the ™

juncture of a main sewet line with a lateral pipe.

Anuther objeet i to provide 2 method and apparatus for
repairing the junciure of a lateral with a main line which may
be accomplished solely from the scwsr main line.

Another object is to peovide an improved seal at the
juncture of the lateral pipe to he muia sewer ling.

Anather objoct is to use s single pisce T-shaped or
Y-shaped liger at the junction belwesn the main sewer lue
and the lateral pipe which provides a full circle seal around
the interior of the main sewer line and around the interdor of
the lateral pipe.
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These and other objects of the present invention witl be
wpparent Lo thuse skilled in the art.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

The foregoing abjects may be schieved by an zpparatus
Tur repairing the junction of a stwer main line and a latcral
pipc made aceording Lo the present inveution, The upparatus
comprises a bladder assembly having an ¢longated main
bladder ube aud an elongated [ateral bladder tube. The main
Bladder tube includes first and second opposite ends and a
main bladder tube opesiog positivncd therebetweon. The
lateral bladder tubc has a first end gonnecied o the main
bladder tube opening and has 5 second end,

The apparatus also includes a liner assombly formed of

5 resin abearbent material and having a main liner tihe and a

lateral liner tube. The main liner tube includcs a first end, a
second end and & main liser tube apening intermediate the
first and seccnd ends. The lateral liner tube bas a fest lateral
line tuhe ¢nd in communication with the main liner tube
opening and is conneeted to the main liner lbe and sealed
around the main liner ibe opening.

The latera) bladder tube and the latecal liner tube arc
positioned at least partially within the wain Bladder tube,
with the main liner iube being culside of, and surrounding
the main bladder twbe and being connected tw il lateral liner
tube through the main bladder twbe opening,

The latcral liner tubc is jnvertible through the main
bladder tube opening 1o an inverted position owside of the
main bladder lube whereby the main liner mbe is on the
exterior of the Tain bladder mbe and the lateral liner tube i
an the exterior of the lateral bladder tube,

The present imvention alse coutemplates a method for
forming a lateralhladder assembly comprising forming a
Dbladder assembly having a main bladder tubs and a lateral
bladder tube. The main bludder tube includes firsl and
second opposite ends aod an intermediate opening therebe-
tween. The lateral bladder tube has a first end conneeted to
the intermediate opening of the main bladder tube and has a
socond end.

The method includes the step of inserting the lateral
hladder tube inside the main bladder tube through the
intermediale opening, Nexl, a liner assembly is formed of
fesin absorbent material and includes a lateral liner tube
faving a first and second end and a liner sheet haviag a sheel
opening there in susrounding and attaching the first end of
the lateral liner tube, The second eod of the lateral liner wbe
is inserted into the intermediate opening of the bladder wbe
and is positioned at least partially inside the main bladder
tube with the first &nd of the lateral liner wbe being adjacent
the intermediate opening of the main bladder tube, and with
the liner sheel outside of the main bladder tube, The liner
sheet is then formed into a main liner tube wrapped around
and surroanding the main bladder tube adjacent the inter-
mediate opening of the main bladder tubw.

An important feslure of the present invention is the
I-shaped or Y-shaped liner assembly. This liner assembly is
constructed from a resin absorbent material and comprises a
main Biner tube and a lateral liner tube formed into a
Tshaped or Y-shaped configuration. The single picoe Iiner
assermhly is impregnated with an uneured esinous material
capahle of curing and hardening, The liner assembly is then
posilioned within the sswer main lice pipe in a pusition
wherein the lateral liner tebhe extends within the latesal sewer
pipe and the main liner tube is within the maio line sewer
pipe, 'The main liner fube and the latere! liner tubs are then
pressed radially outwardly against the interior surfaces of
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the main line sewer pipe and the lateral line sewer pipe
respictively, The resin s pemitted to cure and harden Lo
form the liver assembly into a single piece whereby the main
lingr tube provides a tull circle ssal around the nterior of the
main sewer pipe on both sides of the damaged junction and
the lateral liner tube provides a full circle seul around the
interior af the faleral sewer pipe adjacent the damaged
junclicn.

BRIEF DESCRIFIION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG, 1 is an exploded perspective view showing the
assembly of the bladder twhe of the present iovention;

FI¢i. 2 i o sectivnal view through the completsd bladeder
tube shown in F1G, 1;

FICGi. 3 is a perspective view of a liner assembly being
constructed for the liner/bladder asscmbly of the present
inventicon,

FIG. 4 is a sectional view siilar to FIG, 2, but with the
liner sssembly installed in the bladder assembly, fo form the
liverbladder assembly,

FIG. § is u pictorial view showing the introduction of
uaeured resin lnta the finer/bladder assembly;

FIG. 6 i an enlurged perspective view showing wsing 8
rodler 1o facilitate impregnating the liner with the resin;

FIG. 7 is a pictoria] view of the liner/bladder assembly
being wstalled on a launcher;

FIG. & is a view similar to FIG. 7, showing a forther step
i vouuesting the linerdladder assembly Lo the launcher,

FIG. 9 45 5 pictorial view of the launcher with the
liner/bladder assembly connected thersto, supported on &
work platfonn;

FIG. 10 i a view similar to FIG. %, showing a subscquent
step In altaching the liner/bladder assembly to the launcher;

FIti. 11 is an enlarged perspective view of the launcher
will the liner/bladder assembly attached thereto and ready
for installation o & sewer line;

FIG. 12 is a sectional view through the linerbladder
assembly witbin a sewer line, showing the asssmbly position
within a main line ready for expansion into a lateral pipe;

Flt3, 13 is a sectional view similar to FIG. 12, but with the
liner/bladder assembly expanded to mstall the loer,

DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED
EMBODIMENT

Referring now to the drawings, in which sinilar or
corresponding parts are identificd with the same reference
numeral, and more pacticularly to FIG, 1, the T-shaped
tladder asscmbly is designated generally ai 12 and forms a
part of the liner/mladder assembly 10 shown in FIG. 4. While
the hladder arsembly 12 is shown to be T-shaped it may also
be Yeshaped or otherwise shaped o accammodate the angle
at which the main sewer pipe and lateral sewer pipe are
disposed relative to one another. Bladder assembly 12
includes a fat sheet 14 of {ranslucent urethane serirm mate-
rial which is conpected to a lateral bladder twbe 16 also
furmed of translucenl urethane serim material. Lateral blad-
der tube 16 is an elongated member haviog first and second
ends 16A and 168 respectively, wilh the first end 16A
attached around an opening 18 located generally centrally in
flaL sheet 14. Preferahly, lalsral tube 16 is attached to sheet
14 by welding or the like to {onn an airlight seal at the
junelure.

Flat sheet 14 15 then {formed into a tube and two longi-
wdinal side edges 1A and T4 are welded together to farm
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a main fine bladder tube 20 (shown in broken lines in FIG.
1). Thus, main line bladder tube 20 and lateral bladder tube
16 form 2 “I=shaped or Y-shaped bladder assembly 12 which
is a single integral pigce that is translucemt,

Referring to FIG. 2, the second cod 168 of lateral bladder
tube 16 is inverled and drewn througl the main line biadder
tabe 20 and o a first end 2004 af the mam line bladder tube
20, such that the first end 16A of the lateral bladder 16 is
inverted to form an opening 22 in the side wall of main line
bladder tube 20,

Referring now Lo FIG. 3, the Liner assembly wtilized in the
linerAladder assembly 10 shown in FIG. 4 is desipnated
generally at 24, Liner assembly 24 includes a lubular lateral
liner 26 connected 1o a flal sheet Liner 28, Both liners 26 and
28 arc formed of felt or other resin absorbent material.
Lateral liner 26 is formed by eonnected side edges of a shect
of liner material with a polymer ¢ouling on une side, such
that the potymer coating 30 is on the exterior ol the mbe
baing tormed, The edges of the sheel are sewn logother at a
gcam 32, and 1 sinp of palymer tape 3 is welded over the
seam to form an airtight seal.,

Flat sheel liner 28 has & central opening formed therein,
and has a pulywer coating 36 on the top surface Lhereof. The
lateral liner tube 26 {s sewn 1o the fat sheet liner 28 around
the opening, and & strip of polymer tape 38 is then welded
conlinuowsly around the juneture o farm en wirlight seal.

Cmee liner assembly 24 has been completed, the second
el 268 of the lateral liner 26 is inserted inta the opering 22
in the side of main line bladder 20 wnd drawn into the Iateral
bladder 16 until the liner Nal sheet 28 coatacts the main line
bladder 20 This siep may be accomplished by allaching a
pe {nat shown) 1o end 268 of the latersl liner 26, and
threading the rope through lateral bladder tube 16. Pulling
the rope then causes the lateral liner 26 W move © the
position shown in FIG, 4.

The seaond end 16R of the lateeat bladder is closed off by
inseriing plug 15 which is leld in place by a clamp 17.
Extending lhrough plug 15 are a PV air pipe 21 and wick
40, as shown io FIGS, 4 and 5. Vacuum opening 19 is
provided in the end 168 of bladder tube 16,

A quantity of curable resin 42 in liquid form is then
introduced inlo the vpening 44 of flat shect liner 28 so as Lo
continue into the lateral liner 26 within lateral bladder 16
(shown in FIG. §). A vacuum source (ol shown} is con-
necled vver the vacuum opening 19 to collapse the walls of
the tateral bladder 16 and lateral Tiner 26 as shown in FIG.
6. IThe wick 40 will provide a path for evacuating gas from
the [ateral bladder 16 until the curable resin moves 1o Lthe
down stream end 16D of lateral liner 16 and completety
impregnales the liner. Because the bladder assembly 12 is
formed of a translucent material, il 35 possible to visually
vorify that the lateral liner 26 is completely impregaated
with resin while inside the lateral bladder 16, A mller 46 is
prefersbly wilized to move the slug of resin and assist in
impregnating the liner 26 with the resin material.

Refereing now to FIGS, 7 and 8, the liner/bladder amiem-
bly 10 is loaded into a launcher 48 for instullation inlo 4
sewer pipe. Launcher 48 includes a hollow cylindrical tube
50 having Forward and rearward ends SDA and SOB respec-
tively. An aperiure 52 is formed gencrally through the side
wall of the lauucher tube 50, Fhe lefi hand edge of wperture
52 is provided witl an upwardly ¢xtending flange 70 which
facilitatcs the sliding of lateral bladder whe 16 into the
lanncher tube 50, The nght side of the aperture 52 is
provided with a downwardly carved wall 72 (F1G. L),

Launcher 50 includes a clevis B0 mounted adjacent ils
rear end, Surrounding the rear ¢nd $0B of launcher 50 is 2
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ring bearing 82, and movnted to ring bearing B2 are a pair
of wheels 84 located at the 5 o'clock and 7 o’vlock positions
whea viewed from an end view (wol showo). 1he ring
bearing 82 permils the wheels 84 1o romain stationary while
the entire body of the launcher 50 can be rolated aboul its
longiludinal axis. Protruding oulwardly (ram the surlsce of
lsuncher tule 50 adjacent the tear end 308 are a pair of
clamping ribs 86, Simiarly a ¢lamping rb 86 is provided
adjaccnt the forward end S0A. A ciccular ring bearing 88 is
also provided adjacent the [orward end 507 aod includes a
pair of wheels 90 mounted thereon.

Liner/bladder assembly 10 s installed an the launchcr 48
by inserting the second end 168 of lateral bladder 16
through apermure 52 and through launcher tmube S0 and out
the forward end SOA of the lavacher wwbe 5. As the main
line bladder wbe 20 apprasches the launcher 48, the rear-
ward cnd 50B of the launcher wbe 50 is inscried into (he first
cid 20A of the main line bladder tube 20, as showa in FIG
8. The Mat sheet liner 28 is moved over the launcher side
wall aperture 52, with the main line bladder 20 exlending on
ppposile sides of aperwc 58,

Ag showp in FIGS. 9-11, the ¢nds 20A, 208 of the main
tine bladder lube 20 are attached (o the Eorward and rearward
ends 504 and 501 of launchet tobe 50 by hands 54, and Lthe
launcher tube is connected o & supporl frame 56 which
holds the launcher 48 In the air. A collapsible bosc 68 is
clamped 1o the forward end S0z of launcher tube 50 by
menns of 4 clamp 92,

A two piece platform 58 is pivoled up inte position to
support the flat sheet liner 28 shove the launcher 48, As
shown in FIG, 10, the two pices platform 58 includes two
halves SRA apd S8R with semiciccular holes 60A and 60R
which will form an wperture theowgh whicl the lateral lining
will extend when the plaiform is moved to the supporl
pusilion shown io FIG, 9,

Unenred resin 42 is then poured onto the {lat sheet Lioer
28 and worked into the liner material. The two piece
platform 58 is then separated and lowered, as shown in FIG,
10, and the flat sheet liner 2B is wrapped acownd the main
line bladder 20, with one side edge 28A averlapping the
other side edpe 28B, as shawn in FIG. 11. Side edges I8A
and 28R are temporarily held tightly together with straps 60
of hook and loop fastener, tape, mbber hands, or other
similur Eusteners,

A positioning robot 82 1s then attached to the rearward end
&0b of launcher tube 50, ag shown in FIEG, 12 and is used 1o
introduce the launcher 48 and liner/bladder assembly 10inte
e sewer wain line 64, Wheels 84, 90 facilitale movement
of essembly 10 within the main sewer line 64, The lateral
liner opening 44 is aligned with the lateral pipe 66 Lo be
repuired. Bearings 2, 88 pormit the robol 62 o motate
assembly 10 a full 360° 50 as to oliain aligament. Robaot 62
also is capable of extending or retracling b move assembly
10 up o six inches for final exact alignment,

Once positioned, air pressure is applied within the
launcher tube 5O wia a “lay Rat” whe 68 connected 10 the
forward end 50a of launcher wbe 50, 1o influte the lateral
bladder 16 und invert the latcral bladder upwardly inlo
luterul pipe 66. The air pressure also presses the main liner
20 radially outwardly against main sewer line 64 and presses
lateral liner 26 radially outwardly against lateral pipe 66
natil the resin impregoated in the lztera] finer 26 and wmain
line liner 28 eures, Onee cured, the generally T-shaped or
Yeshaped liner assembly 24 ix 2 one piece liner connecting
the main pipe 64 with the lateral pipe 66 10 seal them
logether, 1L provides full circle sealing of both the lateral
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pipe 66 and the main pipe 64, Beeayse of the wse of the
polymer coated liner assembly 24, 1he motual lingr assembly
can be tested prios to installelion in the ground, 16 ¢nsure an
airtight connection.
Whereas Lhe invention has been shown apd deseribed in
connection with the prefemed embodiment thereofl, many
modificalions, substitutions and additions may be made
which are within the intended bread seope of Lthe appended
claims.
I claim:
L. A method for forming o linerladder assembly for
repairing the junction of & main line pipe and a lateral pipe,
said method comprising:
farming & main bladdes tubie and a Jatersl bladder Lube,
said main bladder lube having frst and scoond opposite
¢nds and an intermediate vpening therebetween, said
luteral bladder tube having a first end connected to suid
imtermediale vpening of said main bladder twube and
having u second end;
inzerting said lateral blagider whe inside said main bladder
nibe through said inermediale opening; forming a
lateral lirer tube and a liner sheet of tesin absorbent
malerial, said lateral liner tube having first and second
enils, said liner sheet having a sheet opening therein
surrovudling nd attached to said first end of said lateral
linee e,

inserting said second end of said lateral liner tubeg ints said
inlermediate opening of said main badder wbe and
positioning said lateral liner lube at least partially
inside said nain Lladder twbe with said [imst end of said
lateral liner tube beinp adjacent said intermediute open-
iy of suid main bladder tube and with said liver shect
owtside said main bladder tube;

forming said liner sheet into a main liner tube wrapped

around and surrouudiug said maio bladder tube adja-
cent said intermediate opening of said main bladder
lube,

impregnating said main liner tube and said latersl liner

tube with an uncured resinous material capable of
curing in a predelermined length of time, said impreg-
nating step being done after said insertng step.

2. A method accarding to elaim 1 and further comprising
impregnaating safd liner sheet with said wnoured resinous
malerial before said step of forming said liner sheetl nto 2
main liner tube,

3, A method according to ¢lain 1 and Buriher comprising
taking a launcher whe having Gest aod second opposite ends
and a launcher tube opening therebetween, and positioning
said main bladder tube in surrounding relation o said
launcher tube wilh said launcher tube opening and said
intermediale opening of said maio btadder tube being in
registered alignment and with said first and second ends of
suid launcher tube protruding autwardly from said first and
second opposite ends of said muin bladder tube,

4. A method according to clain 3 and farther comprising
altaching said fimst and second opposile ends of said main
bladder tube in sealed engrgement with the extecior of said
lavncher tube,

5 Apparatus for repairing, the junclion of a sewer main
line and & laleral pipe connected thercto, comprising:

an ¢longated main bladder ube and an elongated lateral

bladder tube, said main hludder tube having first and
second opposite ends and a main Wadder tube opening,
pasitinned there hetween, said lateral bladder tube
having a first eod connected to said main bladder tubx
upenig;
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a main linet tube and 2 laleral liner tubc formed of resin
absorkent material, said main liner tube having first and
second opposite ends and a main liner fube opening
there botween, said laleral liner wube having 2 fimst
lateral Lner wbe epd connccted 10 said main liner tube
opening,

& [nuncher tube having first apd second opposite cnds and
i launcher tube opening there between;

said main bladdet tube being oulside and surrownding said
launcher tube and said lateral bladder tube extending
through said lawacher rbe opening inte the inside of
saic] luuncher tube;

said main liner tube being outside and surrounding seid
main bladder (ube and said launcher wbe, said lateral
liner tube extending thirougzh said launcher lube apening
imu the inside of both said launcher tubc and said
lateral bludder tube,

said latcral bladder wbe and said lateral liner lube being

invertible through said Jauncher tube opening W an

inverted position ouiside said launcher tube wherein
said main liner tube and said lateral liner tube are on Lhe
exterior ol said main bladder tube and said lateral
bladder ubg,

6. An apparatus accarding 10 ¢laim 5 and further com- 44

prsing said Mrst and second opposite ends of said main
bladder tule being attached ta and sealed arownd e exterior
of said lavncher mbe,

7. A method for repairing o damaged junction between a

main line sewer pipe and a lateral sewer pipe, said method

comprising; )
forming a main Bladder tube and a lateral bladder mbe,
said main bladder tube having first and second opposite
ends and 8 main bladder tube opening there belween,

said lateral bladder tube having a first ead comneeted to 3

said main bladder tube opening;

formiug a wain liner member and a lateral liner mbe of
resin ahsorbent malerial, 5aid main liner member hay-
ing & main liner opening therein, said lateral liner wbe
having a first laleral Liner tube end connected to said
main liner opening;

inserting said lateral liner tube at least partially mside said

|ateral bladder tube while at the same time keeping said
main lingr member at least partially outside said main
bladder tube;

inserling suid lateral liner tube znd said lateral bladder

tube at least pantially inta the inside of a launcher wibe
tbrough a launcher tube opening io said launcher ube
while al the sume tirne Kocping said muin bladder ube
and szid main liner wember at least partinlly oulside of
satd lanncher tube,

8. A method according to cluim 7 and further comprising
irzerting said launcher tube inlo said main line of said sewer,
registering said launcher tube opening with said junction of
sail lateral pipe and said maio line pipe, and inverting said
fateral bladder tube and said lateral liner wube out of said
fauncher tube iuto said lateral pipe wilh said lateral liver tube
being outside said lateral bladder tube.

Y. A method according to claim ¥ and further comprising
pressing said main liner tube radially outwardly aguinst said
main line pipe, permitting said curable resin to cure and
harden, and removing said launcher wbe, said main bladder
tube, and said lateral bladder ube from said main line sewer

pipe.
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L. A method for repairing a damaged junction between a
main line sewer pipe and & lateral sewer pipe, said methad
somprising:

constructing 4 single piece liner assembly (rom a resin

absorbent material, said liner assembly comprising 2
main liner tube and & lateral loer tulse, said mam liner
tube having liest and sccond opposile ends and a main
liner tube opening there belween, said lateral liner tube
having first and second ends, one of which is connected
to said main lner Wwbe opeaing of said main liocr whe
o provide communication from the interior of said
Tateral liner lube through said main liner mbe opening
to the nterior of said main liner tbe;

impreguatiug said main loer tube and said lateral liner
tube with an uncured resinous materiul capable of
curing aud bardening;

mounting suid liner assembly Lo a launcher fube having

first and second opposite cnds and a launcher wbe
opening pusitioncd there hetween, said mounting slep
comprising placiug said lateral liner tube within said
launcher tube and placing said main tiner wbe on the
exterior of said launcher tube, said lateral liner wbe and
said main liner tube being connected to one another
through said launcher b opening;

moving said launcher tube within said main line sewer

pipe to a posilion wherein said fauncher twbe vpening
is in registered alipnment with said damaged junction;
and

{nverting said lateval liner tuhe oul of said launcher fube

throvgh safd launcher tube opening into said lateral
sewer pipe;
pressinp said main liner tube radially outwardly inte
engagement with the interor surface of said main lins
sewer pipe aod said 1ateral liner tube radially outwardly
into cngagement wilh the interior surface of said lateral
REWET PIpE;

permitling said osin 10 cure and burden whereby suid
rmain lner tube provides a full circle seal around the
interior of said main sewer pipe oo both sides of said
damaged jupclion, aod said lateral liner tube provides
a full circle sca! araund the interior of said latera! sewer
pipe adjacent said damaged juncture.

11. A method aceording to claim 10 wherein a lateral
bladder whe sucrcuads said liner lube within said laacher
lube and a main line bladder tube surrounds said lavocher
tube, said inverling step further comprising inverting said
ladder tube through said lawncher wbe vpening into said
lateral sewer pipe wherehy said lateral liner mbe is nutside
said lateral bladder tube and in enpagement with the interior
ol suid lateral sewer pipe.

12, A methad secording ta claim 10 wherein said pressing
step further eomprises radially expanding a main bladder
tube localed hetween said main liner tube aud the exterior of
said launcher wbe to press said main liner fbe radially
oupwardly loward said main line sewer pipe.

13, Amethod acearding to clain 10 wherein seid pressing
step further eomprises cadially expanding u lateral bladder
tube located inside said lateral liner (ube o press said laters]
liner tube radially outwardly toward said lateral sewer pipe.

* * L *
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MIGHATL W, DORNINE __ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CLERK. U.8, DISTAIOT QOURT R THERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION
LMK ENTERFRISES, INC., )
y  06CV 3970
Plattifts, % JUDGE CONLON
v ; MAG. JUDGE ASHMAN
LIQUI-FORCE SERVICES, and LIQUI- ) T T
FORCE SERVICES USA, TNC. ) JURY TRIAL DEMAND
)
Defendants. )
COMPLAINT

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, LMK Enterptiscs, Inc. ("LMK."), and for ils complaint
against the Defendants, Liqui-Force Services ("Liqui-Force (Canada)™) and Liqui-Force Services
USA, Inc. ("Liqui-Force (USA)"), states and alleges as follows:

TIIE PARTIES

1. Plaintill LMK is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state
of Thinois with its principal place of business at 1779 Chessie Lane, Qttawa, lllinois 61350.

2. Upon information and belief, Ligui-Force (Canada) is a Canadian company
having its principal place of business at 2015 Sprinks Drive, RR2 Kingsville, Ontatio N9Y 2E5,

3. Upon information and belief, Liqui-Force (USA) is a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the state of Michigan, having offices at 28529 Goddard Road, Stc.

106, Romulus, Michigan 48174,
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VENUE AND JURISDICTTON
4. Turisdiction of this Courl arises under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and § 1338(a) and 35

U.S.C. § 1, ef seq., there being a federal question at issuc. This Court also has jurisdiction over
{he subject matler of this action pursuant to 28 U.6.C. § 1332, since this action is between
citizens of different states and the value of this matter cxceeds $75,000, exclusive of intcrest and
costs. This Court alsc has supplemental jutisdiction of the state and common law claims under
28 U.S.C. § 1367

5. Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada) has consented to the jurisdiction of the linois
courts for resolving disputes in this case, pursuant to a forum selection clause contained irt 4

license agreement effective November 27, 1998 (copy attached as Exhibit 1).

6. Defendant Ligui-Foree (USA) has consented lo (he jurisdiction of the 1llinois
courts for resolving disputes in this case, pursuant to & forum sclection clause contained n a

license agreement effective March 2, 1 998 (copy attached as Exhibit 2).

7. Further, Defendants have intentionally directed their actions to this district by

undertaking the conduet alleged below, when Defendants knew or should have known that the

brunt of injury would be suffered mn this district.

8. Venua is proper under 28 U.5.C. § 1391, as acts or omissions giving risc to the
present ¢asc or controversy occurred, at least in part, within this state and district. Defendants
also consented to having all disputes in this case resolved by Illinois courts, pursuant Lo the

aforementioned forum selection clauses.
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COUNT I: PATENT INFRINGEMENT — 11.8. PATENT NO. 6,039,079
{As to All Defendants)

9. Plainti{f LMK incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1-8 above.

10. On March 21, 2000, Unitcd States Letters Patent 6,039,079, entitled "Apparalus
and Method for Repairing the Junction of 2 Sewer Main T.ine and Lateral Pipe" was duly and
legally issued n the name of Larry W. Kiest, Jr., and the entire right, title and interesl in and to
said patent has been assigned Lo Plaintill LMK, as reflected by the in formatiot appearing on the
face of the patent. A copy of the aforcsaid patent is attached herelo a8 Exhibit 3,

11.  Upon information and belief, D¢ fendants Liqui-Force (Canada) and Liqui-Force

(USA) have infringed certain claims of United States Patent No. 6,039,079, and threaten to

continue their infringement by performing the methods claimed in the patent without authority 10

do so, all in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. Plaintiff LMK has been damaged by Defendants'

infringement of United Stales Patent No. 6,039,079 and will continue to be damaged in the future
unless Defendants are permanently cnjoined from infringing, either dircetly or indirectly, said
patent.

12 Upon information and belief, Defendants have both constructive and actual notice
of Plaintiff LMK's patent mnd in particular that said patent was duly and legally issued and
Defendants are aware or should be aware that their activities directly infringe United States
Patent No. 6,039,079,

13.  Upon information and belicf, Defendants' infringement of United States Patent

No. 6,039,079 is now and has been intentional, willful, and deliberale.
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COUNT II: BREACH QF CONTRACT
MARCH 9, 1998 LICENSE AGREEMENT)
{As to Defendant Ligui-Force (USA))

14, Plaintiff LMK incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1-13 abovc.

15.  OnMarch 9, 1998, Plaintill LMK and Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) entered into
a License Agreement (Exhibit 2).

16.  Plaintiff LMK performed fully under the License Agrecment.

17.  Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) has breached the express terms of the March 9,
1998, License Agreement by using the licensed products and services without making Toyalty
payments to LMK.

18.  Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) has further breached the License Agreement by
refusing lo convey ownership to LMK of improvements to the liccnsed products and services,
including but not limited to any rights and inventions in U.S. Patents 6,484,757, 6,693,013;

6,827,520.

19.  Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) has further breached the License Agreament by
using the Licensed Products and Licensed Scrvices outside of the Licensed Territory.

50.  Plaintiff LMK has demanded from Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) royalty
payments for unauthorized use of the licensed products and services.

21, Plaintiff LMK has demanded from Defendant Ligui-Force (USA) tha il conveys
ownership to LMK of all inventions for improvements to the licensed products and services.

22, Plaintiff LMK has demanded from Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) that it cease

using the Licensed Products and Licensed Services owtside of the Liccnsed Territory.




I S

Gase 2 Uy BEBR AT DYEGME@Ddumditet 0F/244P008 0/08ad881FPof 50

23, Despite the repeated demands of Plaintiff LMK, Defendant Liqui-Farec {USA)
stil] refused to pay the royalties, convey Lo LMK owncrship of all inventions for improvements
to the licensed products and services and ¢casc using the Licensed Products and Liccnsed
Services outside the Licensed Territory.

24.  The License Agreement includes @ covenant by Liqui-Force (USA) to not provide
or offer to provide o customers any goods or services which are competitive with the licensed
produced and services as defined by the License Agrcement for a period of two years after
termination of this Agreement,

75 The License Agreement was expressly lerminated by LMK on June 13, 2005.

26.  Defendant Liqui-Foree (USA) has continued o provide and offer to provide

customers goods and services compelilive with the licensed produces and services as defincd by

the License Agreement.
97 Defendant Ligui-Force's (USA) actions are in violation of the covenant not 10

compcte contained the License Agreement.

28.  If Defendant Ligui-Force (USA) is permilted to continuc violating this Agreement
by providing and offering to provide customers goods and services competitive with the hicensed

products and services, as defined by the License Agrecment, LMK's relationship with its

customers will be digrupted and LMK will suffer gubstantial and irrcparable injury to its
goodwill and business for which it has no adequate remedy at law.
29, As 2 result of Defendant Liqui-Force's (USA) breaches of contract, LMK has

suffered damages, in an amouni not yel ascertained.
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COUNT LLL: BREACH OF CONTRACT
(NOVEMBER 27, 1998 LICENSE AGREEMENT)

(As to Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada)

30.  Plaintiff LMK incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1-29 above.

31.  On November 27, 1998, Plaintilf LMK and Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada)
entered into a License Agreement (Exhibit 1).

32, Plaintilf LMK performed fully under the License Agreement.

33, Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada} has breached the express terms of the November
27, 1998, License Agreement by using the licensed producis and services without making royalty
payments to LMK,

34.  Defendani Liqui-Force (Canada) has further breached the License Agreement by
refusing to convey ownership 1o LMK ol improvements to the licensed products and services,
including but not limited to any rights in U.S. Patents 6,484,757, 6,695,013, 6,827,526.

35.  Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada) has further breached the License Agreement by
using the Licensed Products and Licensed Services outside of the Licensed Territory.

36, Plaintiff LMK has demanded from Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada) royalty
payments for unauthorized use of the licensed products and services.

37, Plantiff LMK has demanded from Defendant Liqui-Foree (Canada) that it
conveys ownership to LMK of all inventions for improvements to the licensed products and
scrvices,

38.  Plamtiff LMK has demanded from Decfendant Liqui-Force (Canada) that it cease

using the Licensed Products and Licensed Services outside of the Licensed Terrilory.
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39, Despite the repeated demands of Plaintiff LMK, Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada)
still refused to pay the royalties, convey to LMK ownership of all inventions for improvements
to the licensed pro;:lucts and services, including ownership of said patents and cease using the
Licensed Products and Licensed Services oulside the Licensed Territory.

40, The License Agreement includes a covenant by Ligui-Force (Canada) to not
provide or offcr to provide to customers any goods or services which are compelitive with the
licensed produced and services as defined by the License Agreement for a period ol two ycars

after termination of this Agreement.

41.  The License Agreement was expressly terminated by LMK on June 135, 2005.

42,  Defendant Liqui-Force (Canada) has continued to provide and offer to provide
customers goods and services competitive with the licensed produces and services as defined by
the License Agrecment.

43,  Defendant Ligui-Force's (Canadu) actions are in violation of the covenant not to
compete contained in the License Agreement.

44,  If Defendant Liqui-Foree (Canada) is permitted to continue violating this
Agreement by providing and offering to provide customers goods and services cotnpetitive with
the licensed products and services, as defined by the License Agreement, LMK's relationship
with its customers will be disrupted and LMK will suffer substantial and irreparable injury (o ils
goodwill and business for which il has no adequate remedy at law,

45, As a result of Defendant Liqui-Force's (Canada) breaches of contract, LMK has

suffcred damages, in an amount not yet ascertained,
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(As to All Defendants)

46.  Plaintiff LMK incorporatcs by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1-45 above.

47.  Plaintiff LMK owns and 1s entitled to posscss property relating to inventions,
whether patentable or otherwise, for the improvements (o the products and scrvices licensed to
Defendants Liqui-Force (USA) and Liqui-Force (Canada).

48.  Defendants claim an interest in such property adverse to Plaintiff LMK, including
but not limited to U.S. Patents 6,484,757; 6,695,013, and 6,827,526

49,  Defendants' claims are without any right, and Defendants have no cstate, right,
title, lien or interest in the described property or any part of it,

50,  Plaintiff LMK lacks an adequats remedy at law for seltling title to the subject
property.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plamtiff LMK prays on its causes of actions as follows:

a. A judgment against Defendants as (o all counts in the Complaint;

b. A judgment that Defendant Liqui-Force (USA) has infringed United States Patent
No. 6,039.079;

c. A judgment that Defendant 1iqui-Force (Canada) has infringed United States
Patent No. 6,039,079,

d. An injunction enjoining and restraining Defendants, their officers, directors,
agents, scrvants, cmployces, attorneys and all others acting under or through them, directly or

indirectly, from infringing United States Patent No. 6,039,079,




Carrr 1 UB-DEMR-AJDoGmdpesumenied 077 itaP08620/Bage dyef 45 of 50

C. A judgment that Defendants' infringement of United States Palent No. 6,039,079
has been willlil and deliberate;

f. A judgment requiring Defendants to pay damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284 for the
infringement, including treble damages due to the knowing, willful and wanton nature of
Defendants' conduct;

g A judgment and order directing Defendants Lo pay the costs of this action,
including all disbursements and attorneys' fees as provided by 35 U.5.C, § 285;

h. An order ol prejudgment intcrest from the date of first patent infringement to
entry of judgment,

i Judgment that Plaintiff be awarded all damages for Defendants’ breach of contract
to which Plainti{T is legally entitled, in an amount to be determincd at trial, adequate to
compensale Plaintiff for Defendants’ breach of contract;

J. An injunction preliminarily and permanently enjoining for a reasonable period of
time Delendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys and ali others
acting through them, directly or indirectly, from providing and/or offering to provide customers
with goods or services which are competitive with the licensed products as defined by the
License Agreement,

k. Judpment that Plaintiff be awarded all damages for Defendants' breach of the
covenant not to compete 1o which Plaintifl is legally entitled, in an amount to be determined at
trial, adequale to compensate Plaintiff for Defendanis' breach of contract.

L. That the claim of quiet title to intellectual property be determined by decree of

this Court;
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m. That the decree declare and adjudgc that Plaintiff owns absolutely and is entitled
(o the quiet and peaceful possession of the property and that Defendants and all persons claiming
under them, have no estate, right, title, lien or interest in or (o the property adverse to Plaintiff;

n That the decree permanently enjoin Defendants from asserting any claim in or to

the property adverse to Plaintiff,

0. Judgment against Defendants for recovery of the possession of the property;

. Tudgment awarding costs and attoreys' fees as provided by law,

q. Judgment awarding pre-judgment interest agamst Defendants’ as provided by law;
and

. Tudgment awarding such other and further relief, both legal and equitable, as the

Court may find just under the circumstances of the present cuse.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff LMK hercby demands a trial by jury on all counts and all issues.

Respectfully submitted,

Dl 42

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
Douglas M. Hall

Gregory P. Casimer

Niro, Scavone, Haller & Niro
181 W. Madison, Suitc 4600
Chicago, IL. 60602

(312) 236-0733

(312 236-3137 (Fax)

10
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off COUNSEL

JellTrey D. Harty

Robert A. Hodgson

McKEE, VOORHEES & SEASE, P.L.C.
201 Grand Avenue, Suite 3200

Des Moines, 1A 50309-2721

Phone: 515-288-3067

Fax: 515-288-1338

Email: harty@ipmvs.com

Fmail: Hodgson@impvs.com

Emal: mvshi@ipmys.com
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Performance Liner™

Non-Exclusive License Agreement
(T-Liner™ )

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into by and between LMK Enterpriges, Inc. an Ilinois Corporation,
of 1779 Chessie Lane, Ottawa, Illinois 61350, USA and Liqui Force Services of 2015 Sprinks Dr,,
RR2 Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2ES5, Canada.

WHEREAS, Licensor is the sole owner of the entire right, title and interest in and to Patents and
Patent Applications (referred to hereafter as "Patent Rights") as shown in Exhibit "A."

WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of the trademark T-Liner™

WHEREAS, Licensee desires a non-exclusive license under the Patent Rights, and the right to use
the T-Liner™ trademark.

Now therefore, in consideration of the covenants set forth therein, the parties hereby agree as
follows: ‘

ARTICLEI - DEFINITIONS
1.1  The EFFECTIVE DATE of this Agreement shall be November 27, 1993.

12 PATENT RIGHTS shall mean the Pateats and Patent applications set out in Exhibit "A"
attached hereto and any divisionals, continuations, continuations-in-part, improvements and reissues
thereof and any patents granted on reexamination thereof,

1.3 PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY shall mean afi confidential information and know-how
disclosed to Licensee by Licensor during the term of this Agreement and which s not known to the
public, disclosed in an issued patent, or otherwise in the public domain.

1.4  LICENSED PRODUCTS shall mean devices or equipment coming within one or more
claims of the Patent Rights or utilizing Licensors Proprietary Technology.

1.5  LICENSED SERVICES shail mean the method coming within one or mare claims of the
Patent Rights or utilizing Licensors Proprietary Technology.

16 MAIN/LATERAL REPAIR SERVICES shall mean the use of Licensed Products and
Services which relate to lining a lateral pipe and a short section of a mainline pipe simultaneously
utilizing an inversion methed for installing the lateral portion and an inflation method for installing
the mainline porion and the use of a fabric liner and/ or an inflation bladder by the same means.

EXHIBIT Fage 1 of 13

i
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1.7  LICENSED TRADEMARK shatl mean the trademark T-Liner™ as used onyor in connection
with LICENSED PRODUCTS and/or SERVICES.

1.8  LICENSED TERRITORY shall mean the geographic territory identified in Exhibit “B.”
ARTICLE I - OWNERSHIF

2.1  Licensee agrees that Licensor is the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in and to said
Patent Rights, and the inventions disclosed and claimed therein, the Proprietary Technology, the
trademark T-Liner™ and that it has the right to grant the License granted herein.

22 Licensee agrees that the Proprietary Technology is confidential until such time as it is
disclosed in an issued patent or otherwise publicly disclosed; and that it is proprietary to Licensor.
Licensee covenants to protect this Proprietary Technology from wnauthorized use or inspection by
others and not to duplicate or assist others in duplication of this or similar equipment, materials or
technology.

ARTICLE Il - GRANT OF LICENSE

3.1 Licensor hereby grants to Licensee the nou-exclusive right and License, subject to the
conditions herein set forth, only to use (not to make or seil) Licensed Products and only to use and
sell Licensed Services for the limited purpose of Sectional and Lateral Repair Services. The License
gramed by this Agreement shall be limited to the Licensed Territory defined in attached Exhibit “B.”
This License shali not include the right to sub-license nor.to bring suit for infringement.

32  Licensee shall mark all Licensed Products and literature promoting Licensed Products and
Services with the appropriate patent notice, which shall include the patent numbers of any issued
patent Rights and the term "Patent Pending” while the patent application is pending.

33 This license is limited to Licensee’s use of any Licensed Products purchased from licensor
only in the provision of Sactional and Lateral Repair Services.

3.4  Licensee will not perform or offer to perform Licensed Products or Services outside of the
Licensed Territory.

Page 2 of 15
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ARTICLE IV - PAYMENT FOR PATENT LICENSE

41 A the signing of the license, Licensee will pay $1.00 USD for the nonexclusive territorial
license. After the signing of the license the Licensee shall abtain contracts for the installation of
the T-Liner process. At that time the Licensee shall purchase the necessary support equipment and
listed in Exhibit "C". Therein the first year of operation and in each subsequent year, the Licensee
agrees o purchase $30,000.00 in Kits the first year and then cach subsequent year at the then current
prices FOB Licensor factory and will make payment in full without offset within (30) thirty days of
ivoice. Failure to meet this minimum standard may result in termination of this License, at the sole
option of the Licensor. Licensee may purchase additional equipment shown on Exhibit "C" at the
current prices FOB Licensor factory and will make payment in full withowt offset within (30) days
of invoice.

42  So long as Licensee purchases from Licensor all of its requirements for equipment and
materials shown on Bxhibit “C™ for the provision of licensed products and services to ifs customers,
there will not be royalties owed for this portion of the license. However, if the Liconsee utilizes
materials or equipment shown on Exhibit “C" that is not purchased from Licensor, then Licensee
shall pay, as payment for this license, & royalty of 10% of the Licensee's sales proceeds for the
Licensed Products and Services provided {o its customers without equipment, products, o SETvices
purchased from Licensor,

ARTICLE V - GRANT OF LICENSE TRADEMARK

5.1  Licensor grants Licensee the non-exclusive right to use the trademark T-Liner on or in
connection with the T-Liner Products and Services. This license shall be limited to the Licensed
Termitory.

59 Licensee's use of the trademark T-Liner shall be limited to the sale, promotion or offering
for sale of the Licensed Products and Services, and shall not be utilized on or in connection with any
other products or services or in the company name without Licensor's approval.

§3  Licensor shall have the right, bul not the obligation, to inspect and monitor during normal
business hours the nature and quality of goods and services Licensee provides under the trade mark
T-Liner. Licensee shall rnaintain the standards of quality of goods and services provided under
these marks as Licensor shall specify from time to time.

Page 3 of 153
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54  Licensee shall not use or promote any products or matérials outside the scope of this License
which are competitive with the Licensed Products and Services during the term of this License, As
used herein term "competitive” shell mean any product or service used for lining the interior of a
lateral and main pipe connection with a cured in place pipe.

5.5 Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee shall cease all use of the Licensed Trademark
and shall return or destroy all printed materials bearing the Licensed Trademark.

5.6  Upon tenmination, Licensor will purchase any liner kits legs a 30% restocking foe. Specialty
liners (non standard tiners) will have a 50% restocking fee. The Licensee will be responsible for
shipping charges.

ARTICLE VI - INSURANCE ANP HOLD HARMLESS

6.1 Licensee hereby agrees to hold Licensor harmless for all liability, attorneys fees, and other
costs incurred by Licensor for olaims made against Licensor by third pasties srising from any act or
omission on the part of Licsnsee,

6.2  Licensee shall name the Licensor as an additional insured under its Liability and Contractors
‘Insurance Policy with minimwm limits of One Million Dollers per each occurrence, per annum
aggrogate for injury to persons end annual aggregate for damage to property and provided a
Ceudtificate of such insurance with a thirty day notice of cancellation.

63  The Licensor does not represent or guarantee that the T-Liner™ does not nor will not '
infringe other patents. However, to the best of Licensor’s knowledge the T-Liner™ process does

not infringe upon any othet patent and this knowiedge is based upon Licensor’s research and patent
searches.

ARTICLE VII - TERM OF AGREEMENT

7.1  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon its EFFECTIVE DATE, and unless sooner
terminated as herein provided, shall continue in full force and effect until the expiration of all the
PATENT RIGHTS licensed hereunder,

Paga 4 of13
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ARTICLE VIII - RIGHT TO TERMINATE

81 -Licensee shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason by depositing notice
thereof in the mail, address to Licensor, thirty days before the date at which the Licenses shall elect
{o have such terminations become effective. Such termination shall not relieve or excuse Licensee
from performing all duties and obligations under this Agreement through the date of termination.

8.2  Licensor shall hiave the right, at its option, to terminate this License and divest Licensee of
all rights granted o it by virtue hereof by giving a thirty day written notice to the Licensee upon the
happening of any of the following events:

: a) In the event that the licensee is in default in its performance of any of its
obligations under this agreement, licensor shall, at its option, have the right to terminate this license
by serving notice in writing to licensee that if default is not cured within one month after the date -
of such notice, the licouse shall terminate. This license shall automatically terminate at the end of
the one month period, unless licensee cures its default and performs all of its duties and obligations
under this agreement before the end of the one month period,

b) a competitor of the Licensor becomes 2 shareholder of consequence of the
Licensee or the Licansee comes under the direct or indirect or de facto of control of any other
person, firm or company (other than those presenily exercising control), whether by sale,
nationalization, conveyance, operation of Jaw or otherwise;

¢) the Licensee suffers the appointment of a receiver or files bankrupicy or is unable
to pay for products and services in a timely manner,

d) due to this Agrestnent, in whole or in pan, being ruled invalid or unenforceable
for any reason;

e) the Licensee does not conform to the Licensor's ot the industry standards in quality
of workmanship.

ARTICLE IX - EFFECTS OF TERMINATION

9.1 Inmmediately upon termination, the Licensee shall cease any and all use of the T-Liner and
its trademark.

92 - Licensee covenants net to provide ot offer to provide to customers any Eo0ds of SETViGes

which are cotnpetitive with the Livensed Products and Services as defined in section 1.5 for a peripd
of two years after termination of this agreemext,

Page Sof 15
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93 Licensor shall not bz liable to Licensee upon any termination, expiration or non-renewal of
this Agreement for compensation, reimbwsement o damages on account of the loss of prospective
profits on anticipated sales, or on account of expenditures, investments, lease commitments in
connection with the business, or goodwill of License for any indirect, special or consequential
damages.

94  Licensee shall surrender its rights hereunder pesceably and in good faith and save as
provided hereinafter, make no use of the same. :

ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS

10.1  The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of [linois. The parties agree that any disputes relative to the terms of this agreement wilf be
resolved in Illinois courts and both parties consent to e jurisdiction of the THinois counts for that
purpose. S

102 No waiver by either Licensee or Licensor, express or implied, of any breach of any term
condition ot obligation of this Agre¢ement by the other shall be constryed as a waiver of any
subsequent breach of that term, condition, or obligation, or any other term, condition, or obligation
of the Agreement of the same or different nature.

103 Tfit should be determined that one or more portions of this Agreement is or are invalid, such
invatidation shiall not operats to relieve the parties hereto of their rights and obligations with respect
to each other uader the remaining portions of this agreement.

104  Any inventions for improvements to the Licensed Products and Services, whether patentable
or not, shall be owned by Licensor regardless whether or not developed by or invented by Licensor
ot Licensee or both.

{0.5 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon all heirs, and
adminjstrators of Licensor and upon the legal representatives and successors of Licensee. This
Agreement shall not be assignable by Licensee without prior approval from the Licensor.

10.6 This Agreement supersedes all oral and written agreements between Licensor and Licensee.

10,7 This Agreement may not be modified by either party, in whole or in part, except by an
additional Agreement in writing signed by Licensor and Licensee.

108  Any notice required herein shall be sent by registered or certified mail and addressed as

follows or to such other addresses as either party designates frotn time to time by written notice to
the other:
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10.9 The NON-DISCLOSURE agreement attached in EXHIBIT "D" shall be binding and shall
become part of this license upon the signing. The Licensee shall be responsible for ensuring that
all employee’s assaciated with the T-Liner™ process have signed attachment "A”.

IN WITNESS WHEREQE, the parties have respectively caused this instrument to be executed by
an official thereunto duly authorized and their respective signatures to be hereunto affixed as of the

day and year indicated.

LMK Enterprises, In¢. (Licensor)

T T Meader 4536
Latry W, Kiest Jr., President” Dats’

Liqui Force Services (Licensee)

Loe it

Kim Lewis, St., President : Date
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